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2016 State Bureau of Procurement Conference 

Why We Are Here 

• Our objective is to provide a few (new) tools used at different 
points of an RFP process  

• These are not intended to replace any templates or tools used 
by SBOP or agencies 

 
“Leaders win through logistics. Vision, sure. Strategy, yes. But 
when you go to war, you need to have both toilet paper and 
bullets at the right place at the right time. In other words you 
must win through logistics.”   
     -Tom Peters 
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2016 State Bureau of Procurement Conference 

Agenda  

•Current State of RFP Scoring 

•Need for New Approaches 

•Tool 1: Automated Scoring 

•Tool 2: Key Business Requirements (KBR) 

•Tool 3: Relative Importance Weighting 

•Wrap Up 
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Current State of RFP Evaluation 

• Requirements fall into one of three categories in an RFP 

 

 Mandatory (Pass/Fail) 
• Limited in number 

• Make room for subjective evaluation based on value, quality 

• Reduce risk of removing a proposal from consideration based on 
overly restrictive pass/fail 

• Purpose to determine who is minimally qualified 
 

• Impact of non-compliance with mandatories 
• Same as a bid, proposer is out and not considered for  

   further scoring 
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Current State of RFP Evaluation 

 General (Scored; Specs for “people” and organization) 
• Common questions about company size, experience 

• Descriptions of the key personnel a company will provide to the agency if 
awarded 

 

 Technical (Scored; Specs for the “what”, business needs) 
• Agency needs for the good/service, asking proposers to describe 

their offerings 

• Problem statements seeking a solution 

 

• Impact of poor responses  
• Low individual and average scores from committee members 

• Focus on a proposal deficiencies rather than its value 
 

5 

2 

3 



Evaluation Dilemmas 
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Complexity 

Time 

Importance of Requirements 



Evaluation Dilemmas 

• Determining Level of Importance 

• What to do you do if a requirement is very important, but 
not enough to be Mandatory? 

• How do you meet the needs of the program area without 
restricting creative solutions from the vendor? 

• How can the procurement agent help the standards or 
development committees reach agreement about how much 
a requirement should be weighted? 
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Evaluation Dilemmas 

• Complexity - Simplification 

• If a requirement is being scored but there are realistically only a few 
ways a proposer could respond, why does it need to be scored by the 
full committee?  

• Can the volume of requirements in a proposal be pared down to 
simplify the evaluation process without the risk of accepting a 
deficient solution? 

 

• Haste Makes Waste 

• Are there ways to streamline the evaluation process to allow 
committees to focus on what counts? 

• Can we cut the time and still achieve a good outcome? 

 

8 



New Approaches 
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Tool 3 

Tool 
2 

Tool 1 

Relative Importance 
Weighting 

Key Business 
Requirements 

(KBR) 

Automated Scoring 
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Tool #1: Automated Scoring 

• Originally developed to address network requirements 

• Easily configured for requirements having several 
correct answers with varying degrees of acceptability 
to the program area 

• Strikes a balance between the “yes” or “no” finality of 
a Mandatory and the lengthy vendor response to 
how they meet a requirement 
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Automated Scoring Example 

• Requirement – Support Hours 

• Possible Responses: 
• 7 x 24 x 365/366 

• 8:00am to 5:00pm CT  Mon-Fri 

• 8:00am to 5:00pm CT  Sun-Sat 

• None of the Above 

• Each response has corresponding point value. In this case, 
points were based on the number of possible answers (4) with 
the preferred response getting four points; second choice three 
points, etc. 
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Setting up Automated Scoring Matrix 

• Excel Workbook to be completed by vendor will contain: 
• Vendor Instructions 

• Requirements worksheet(s) with drop down list of response options 

• Scoring/Points Legend worksheet (hidden) 

• Score Sheet (hidden) 

• The requirements and corresponding scoring is achieved using 
Drop Down lists from the Data Tools menu and the VLOOKUP 
function* 

• Automated Scoring function within workbook is hidden (very 
hidden)* 

 
*Links to Excel How-To’s along with recommended RFP language and vendor instructions at end of slide deck  
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Drop Down Response Sample 
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Snapshot of Scoring Legend Worksheet 
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DROP DOWN VALUES POINTS

Bandwidth Increment (Cat A, B & D) 10 Mbps, 100 Mbps, and 1 Gbps 1

10 Mbps, 100 Mbps, 1 Gbps, and 10 Gbps 2

10 Mbps, 100 Mbps, 1 Gbps, 10 Gbps, and 100 Gbps 3

Broadband increment (Cat C only) ≤ 10 Mbps download / varies upload 1

>10 and ≤ 25 Mbps download / varies upload 2

> 25 and ≤ 50 Mbps download / varies upload 3

> 50 and ≤ 100 Mbps download / varies upload 4

> 100 and  ≤ 200 Mbps download / varies upload 5

> 200 and ≤ 300 Mbps download / varies upload 6

> 300 and  ≤ 400 Mbps download / varies upload 7

> 400 and ≤ 500 Mbps download / varies upload 8

> 500 and ≤ 1 Gbps download / varies upload 9

Bandwidth Type symmetrical 2

asymmetrical (download/upload) 1

symmetrical and asymmetrical 3

Maxium Transmission Unit (MTU) ≥ 1500 bytes for  ≤ 1 Gbps of bandwidth 1

≥ 9000 bytes for  ≥ 1 Gbps of bandwidth 2

≥ 1500 bytes for  ≤ 1 Gbps of bandwidth and ≥ 9000 bytes for  ≥ 1 Gbps of bandwidth 3

(UNI-N)-to-(UNI-C) Interface Handoff Ethernet / fiber 2

Ethernet / copper 1

Both 3

Does not support Ethernet handoff 0



Vendor Completed Worksheet 
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Response (select one from drop down list)

1 Bandwidth Increments > 400 and ≤ 500 Mbps download / varies upload

2 Bandwidth Type asymmetrical (download/upload)

3 (UNI-N)-to-(UNI-C) Interface Handoff Does not support Ethernet handoff

4 (UNI-N)-to-(UNI-C) Duplex Settings Auto Negotiate

5 Mean Latency (Continuous Measurement - One-Way) ≤ 100ms

6 Mean Jitter (Continuous Measurement - One-Way) ≤ 30ms

7 Mean Packet Loss (Continuous Measurement) ≤ 0.2%

8 802.1Q VLAN Tags Does not preserve 802.1Q VLAN tag

9 Minimum Monthly Service Availability ≥ 99.2%

10 Order/Provisioning Without Construction ≤ 10 business days

11 Order/Provisioning With Construction > 60 and  ≤ 90 business days

12 Network Operation Center Support 7 x 24 x 365/366 (service performed within the United States)

13 Dispatch Support Hours 8:00am to 5:00pm CT  Sun-Sat

14 Network Incident Detection (NID) None of the Above

15 Mean Time to Restore Service (MTRS) ≤ 2 hours

BCN Service Type or Attribute

CATEGORY C - BROADBAND INTERNET



Scores – Column D & Row 21 added to 
Vendor-completed worksheet 
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Rolled Up Score Sheet 
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Max Score
1

Max 

Points
2

Proposer 

Points
3

% of Max 

Points

Proposer 

Score
4

Category A 70 187 105 56% 39

Category B 30 126 88 70% 21

Category C 20 81 41 51% 10

Category D 55 183 115 63% 35

Total 175 577 349 105

1 
Distribution of Matrix's 175 Points as determined by RFP development committee

2 Total available points per category  in accordance with Scoring Legend Worksheet
3 Proposer's total points per worksheet. This row on each worksheet will be added to Proposer's response
4 

Proposer's percentage of maximum points x maximum score



Tool #1 Application 

• This tool works well for 
requirements in an RFP that 
have limited possible 
answers 
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• For example: 
• Years of company experience 

• Number of staff dedicated to contract 

• File formats that a company can support for contract documents 

• Support hours of operation 

• Response time to incidents 

• Locations for service 
 

 

 

 



Tool #1: Benefits and Risks 
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• Vendor spends less time on narrative responses 

• With more focused vendor response, Evaluation 
Committee can focus on content of response rather 
than “checking boxes” 

• Removes a subjective element from the scoring 
process where it isn’t necessary 

Benefits 

• Not accounting for all possible answers, 
vendor feeling “boxed in” 

• Coming to consensus with your program 
area on how much each answer should be 
worth (Stay tuned - Tool #3 could help) 

Risks 



Questions? 
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What questions 

do you have 
about this tool? 

 

Application in 
your agency? 

 

 
Ideas for 

improvement? 
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Tool #2: Key Business Requirements (KBR) 

• Tool was developed to address important, but not Mandatory, 
requirements for the Lottery’s online gaming system 

• The requirements were needs of the Lottery, but so voluminous 
that they didn’t want the impact of non-compliance to be a 
disqualified proposal. 

• Applicable to situations where there are many important 
requirements to an agency but they are in a gray area between 
pass/fail criticality and needing to be scored and benchmarked 
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KBR Example 
“Key Business Requirement (KBR) – A significant task, function, 
feature, policy, or procedure, defined by the Lottery, that best 
supports its operation of the System and the underlying 
Contract.” 
 

• Sample KBRs: 
• Contractor shall provide service and supplies for ITVMs, including technical 

hotline support 

• The Lottery shall be able to change the display message at least once daily 

• The System shall have the ability to transmit specific messages to particular 
Retailer locations 

• In this RFP there were 359 KBRs 
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Setting Up the KBR Matrix 

• Work with the program area to decouple Mandatory 
requirements which may have elements that are optional or 
negotiable 

• Mandatory requirements remain pass/fail and are minimized as 
much as possible 

• Remaining requirements (i.e. KBRs) are a separate list with a 
tolerance for passing 
• In the Lottery RFP, at least 90% of the KBRs had to be met with a 10% 

tolerance 

• A proposal with a “no” response to 36 of the 359 KBRs 

  would fail 

• Matrix will be completed by vendor 
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Screenshot 
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Tool #2 Application 

• This tool works well for 
RFPs with many 
requirements 
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• For example: 
• Agency has many requirements in an RFP that will set the foundation for 

a responsive proposal but are not all Mandatory 

• Number of requirements are voluminous and the responses do not 
require subjective scoring 

• Lists of features for a requested tool 

• Services that can be delivered in several ways, agency requires options 

• Requirements where an agency will accept some level of deviation 
 

 

 

 



Tool #2: Benefits and Risks 
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• Vendor spends less time on narrative responses 

• Agency communicates very important 
requirements to proposers but is not required to 
reject slightly deviating proposals 

• Removes a subjective element from the scoring 
process where it isn’t necessary 

Benefits 

• Proposers saying “no” to requirements that 
cost the most to provide 

• Coming to consensus with your program 
area on which requirements are truly 
Mandatory 

Risks 



Questions? 
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What questions 

do you have 
about this tool? 

 

Application in 
your agency? 

 

 
Ideas for 

improvement? 
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Tool #3: Relative Importance Weighting 

• Tool was developed to streamline the approach to applying 
weights to general and technical requirements 
• Has been used in several RFPs, including Lottery, managed IT security, 

help desk/desktop support services 

• Internal tool, no vendor response required 

• Applicable to situations where the development committee has 
difficulty applying points and an order of importance to a list of 
requirements 

• Uniform and objective method of determining the relative 
importance (and numeric weight) to RFP requirements 
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Example 
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Section Points Percent 

6.2 General Staffing Requirements 35 2.1% 

6.3 Security 100 5.9% 

6.4 Pre-Game Deliverables 15 0.9% 

6.5 Ticket Requirements 450 26.5% 

6.6 Representative Ticket Samples 150 8.8% 

6.15 Marketing and Related Services 225 13.2% 

6.16 Additional or New Features 45 2.6% 

10.2 Category 2 Cost Proposal 680 40% 

TOTAL 1700 100% 

Lottery RFP, Category 2: Instant Scratch Ticket Printing 



Example 
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No. Section Points 

6.5.1 Validation Barcodes ? 

6.5.2 Shelf Life and Durability ? 

6.5.3 Ticket Sizes ? 

6.5.4 Pack Sizes ? 

6.5.5 Exposing Materials ? 

6.5.6 Color Printing Capabilities ? 

6.5.7 Overprint Color Capabilities ? 

Total 450 

• The section for ticket requirements was worth 450 out of 1020 
(total available technical points) 

 
• How to distribute those 450 points? 



Setting up the Relative Importance 
Weighting Matrix 
• Excel workbook to be completed by procurement manager and 

development committee will contain: 
• Each requirement, number and description 

• Total point value for the section 

• Designation of importance from the team (e.g. high/medium/low or 
must have/should have/nice to have) 

• If the team is using descriptions of importance, use IF function 
in Excel to apply a numeric value to each level of importance 
corresponding with selected scale 
• Example 1: High = 3, Medium = 2, Low = 1 

• Example 2: Critical = 5, Very Important = 4, Important = 3, Nice to Have = 
2, Low Importance = 1 

•  Excel formula using Example 1: 
• =IF(N5="H",3,IF(N5="M",2,IF(N5="L",1))) 
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How it Works 
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• Add up the total of your “importance values” and determine the 
scale your committee will use (e.g. 1-10; 1-20, etc.) 
• Take the max of the range (e.g. 10, 20) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

No. Importance Value 

6.5.1 N (Nice to Have) 1 

6.5.2 N 1 

6.5.3 I (Important) 2 

6.5.4 I 2 

6.5.5 N 1 

6.5.6 V (Very Important) 3 

6.5.7 C (Critical) 4 

Total 14 



How it Works 
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1) Multiply the value importance total (14) by the top of the 
score range (1-20 scale (20 x 14 = 280)) 

2) Divide the total section points (450) by the result (280) for a 
basic multiplier; that is the base weight for each requirement 

3) Multiply the base weight by the importance number (1, 2, etc) 

4) Multiply the weight by the top of the scale, resulting in the 
maximum weighted score for that requirement 
 

• This is the calculation in your score sheet 
• Evaluators still use a consistent scale on the tool 

• Upon abstract, their raw score is automatically 
calculated into a weighted score 

 



Screenshot 
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Tool #3 Application 

• This tool works as a time 
saver during the 
development process 
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• Teams often have difficulty translating the importance 
of requirements into points 

 
 

 

 

 



Tool #3: Benefits and Risks 
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• You and your committee spend less time creating 
weights and scores for RFPs 

• Formula applies a uniform methodology using 
formulas, reducing errors with manual input 

• Removes a subjective element from the weighting 
process 

Benefits 

• Formula errors 

• Coming to consensus on level of 
importance 

Risks 



Questions? 
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What questions 

do you have 
about this tool? 

 

Application in 
your agency? 

 

 
Ideas for 

improvement? 
 



Parting Thoughts 

• We hope these tools and new approaches will be of value  

• We encourage the sharing of your tools and ideas, striving for 
continual improvement of the RFP process 

 

“We cannot solve our problems with the same thinking we used 
when we created them.” — Albert Einstein 

 

“If you want something new, you have to stop doing something 
old.” — Peter Drucker 
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Wrap Up 

• These slides will be made available online after the conference 

• Please complete your break out session evaluation before you 
leave  
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Obligatory Cute Dog Images 
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Additional Scoring Tool Information 

• Tool #1 – Excel How To URLs 
• Drop-down Lists 

• http://www.excel-easy.com/examples/drop-down-list.html   

 

• VLOOKUP 

• http://www.howtogeek.com/howto/13780/using-vlookup-in-excel/  
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Additional Scoring Tool Information 

• Tool #1 – VLOOKUP Formula Screenshot 
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Additional Scoring Tool Information 

• Tool #1 - Hiding a Worksheet (really hiding it) 
• In your workbook…Switch to Excel's VBE (press [Alt]+[F11]) 
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Additional Scoring Tool Information 

• Hiding a worksheet continued…. 

• In VBE screen… 
• In the Project –VBAProject window, select the sheet you want to hide.  

• In the Properties window just below, select 2 - xlSheetVeryHidden from 
the Visible property's drop-down list. Excel applies the property to your 
selected sheet but then selects the first sheet, Sheet1, which is a bit 
distracting. That behavior is normal, so don't let it bother you. If you 
highlight the worksheet you selected you’ll see that it says “2 – 
xlSheetVeryHidden” 

• To undo when you get the workbook back, press 
[Alt]+[F11], select worksheet and 1-xSheetVisible 
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Additional Scoring Tool Information 
Tool #1 RFP Section References 

• Scope 
• “The required service offerings are organized into the following four categories which include 

high-level descriptions of the required services.  The specific technical requirements for each 
category are provided in Attachment A-Technical Requirements Matrix.”  

• Proposal Organization and Format 
• “Tab 5 - Technical Requirements Matrix (Attachment A):  Complete the requirements matrix as 

directed in Attachment A-Technical Requirements Matrix.  The document is an Excel workbook 
with multiple choice responses formatted as drop down lists.” 

• Preliminary Evaluation 
• “Those Proposals that pass the initial evaluation will then have scores calculated in response to 

Attachment A-Technical Requirements Matrix.  Scoring of Attachment A is automated with 
weighted points generated for response option.” 

• Requirements Introductory paragraphs 

• “Proposers are reminded that BCN shall be managed and operated in 
accordance with State’s specifications in Attachment A-Technical 
Requirements Matrix and Proposer’s response to those requirements. 
Responses to the sections below shall take into account those requirements.” 
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Additional Scoring Tool Information 

Tool # 2 RFP Workbook Instructions 

• To reduce the risk of proposers saying “no” to requirements on a KBR matrix 
that are most expensive to provide, define what “yes” and “no” means 

 

• Checking “Yes” will mean that the requirement can and will be met with the 
Proposer’s current standard offering and/or using work-arounds, features 
currently in development, or professional services to meet the need at no 
additional cost to the Lottery above what is submitted in the Proposal.  

 

• Checking “No” will mean that the requirement absolutely cannot be met with the 
Proposer’s current standard offering and no possible developments or 
professional services available to the Proposer 
will achieve compliance. 
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Additional Scoring Tool Information 

Tool #2 RFP Section References 

• Section 5 (General and Technical for Online Gaming) 

 
“All Requirements identified as Key Business Requirements (KBR) shall be 
responded to as instructed on the KBR Matrix for Category 1. Proposers must 
meet at least ninety percent (90%) of all KBRs in order to be considered 
responsive. Failure to meet at least 90% of all KBRs shall result in Proposal 
disqualification unless it is determined that no Proposer can meet one or more 
KBR(s) in which case the State reserves the right to waive such KBR(s) and 
continue to review Proposals meeting 90% of all remaining KBRs.”  
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